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CORPORATE PROFILE

Triton Gold Limited (ACN: 126 042 215) is a
gold exploration company, established in
2006 as Australian Mineral Fields Inc. The
Company was listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (“ASX”) on 14 August
2009.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
____________________________________
This is the Company’s third annual report
since publically listing on the ASX as a gold
exploration company with prospects in
Western Australia and Alaska.
During the first half of year under review, the
Company continued following its strategic
plan
to
discover
economic
gold
mineralisation in the emerging Albany-Fraser
Province
where
AngloGold
Ashanti/
Independence Group have the 5 million plus
oz. Tropicana Gold Project.
In the early part of 2011, the Company
completed a capital raising to provide
ongoing working capital to fund these
projects. However, half way through the year
and as a result of a detailed Strategic Review
most exploration activity on the projects was
wound back. Further, the Company’s
corporate office was relocated and the
staffing numbers were minimised in line with
the new strategic direction the Company, as
it continues to actively consider various
opportunities for new projects, which will
facilitate a strengthening of the Company’s
current portfolio of projects and will ultimately
assist in securing the Company’s financial
position and future growth potential.

The decision to discontinue with the majority
of existing projects, and write them off, has
allowed the Board to effectively structure the
Company to move forward. The directors are
optimistic with the progress being made to
date in achieving this new strategic objective
and look forward to the year to come.
I thank our directors, officers and staff for
their tireless hard work during 2011 and their
support of the Company goals and look
forward to their same commitment in 2012.

______________________
Malcolm James
Chairman

27 April 2012

As a result of the strategic review the
Company’s initial land holding in the AlbanyFraser Province was reduced during the year
to focus on the stronger prospects of Salmon
Gums and Fraser Range North.
The
Operations Review goes into further detail on
these projects.
The Company, having completed the
strategic review has elected to write off the
costs associated with these projects totalling
$5,912,819 and has therefore reported a net
st
loss of $7,189,593 for the year ended 31
st
December 2011. Cash on hand at 31
December 2011 was $585,035, with a further
US$650,000 recovered in February 2012
from a long outstanding debt.
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OPERATION’S REPORT
Group Strategy
In July 2011, a Corporate Strategic Review
of the Group was completed. This review
identified that the acquisition of a key project
was vital for the Group’s ongoing
development. Thus, the Group has
considered a number of developing
opportunities and continued to focus on
obtaining a project which has a strong
chance of success. Furthermore, the Group
has scaled back its exploration programme
on the existing projects in order to facilitate
this undertaking.
The Board believes that this new strategy to
consider various opportunities for new
projects will provide a strengthening of the
Group’s current portfolio of projects and will
ultimately assist in securing the Group’s
financial position and future growth.
Whilst, the search for a key project continues
the Group is stilled focussed on exploring for
gold in both mature and immature gold
districts in Australia and overseas.
The Group continues to explore in a number
of prospective greenfield districts, using
leading edge technologies and geological
concepts to discover major gold systems. In
particular, the Group utilises advanced
geochemical and spectral techniques to
more effectively identify the subtle margins of
gold mineralisation systems that may
otherwise go undetected using conventional
exploration methods. This strategy is aligned
with the generally industry-wide accepted
view that the next generation of major
discoveries will be deposits that are either
blind to the surface or at deeper levels than
those previously explored.
Projects Overview
The Group continues to hold an extensive
tenement holding in the Albany Fraser
Province, which has since emerged as a
significant
gold
province
with
the
announcement of the +5Moz Tropicana Gold
Mine (AngloGold Ashanti/Independence
Group JV), and exciting exploration results
reported by Beadell Resources Ltd,
International Goldfields Ltd and others.

The strategic alliance with Teck Australia Ltd
under (“Tropicana Gold Belt Alliance
Agreement”) expired in December 2011 and
now the Group holds 100% of all minerals
rights in the remaining projects.
Salmon Gums Project,
Albany-Fraser Province
The Group’s original strategy for staking
areas in the Albany Fraser Province was to
target the intersection of major large-scale
faults within the older Yilgarn Craton and the
collisional zone with the younger AlbanyFraser Province. Triton’s Salmon Gums
Project covers the intersection of the
projected position of the large-scale Ida Fault
and the Albany-Fraser Province (AFP).
Despite the limited results for precious metal
prospectively on the project the Group is still
interested by the high number of anomalous
zones including the Lady Penrhyn prospect,
identified within the project. However, the
Group wants to ensure that the latent
possibility of the area is fully assessed in
detail
before
making
any
further
determinations about the project.
A formal external review was competed on
the project to assess its overall prospectivity
for gold and the value of maintaining the
current landholding.
As a result of the review the Group continues
to be buoyant about the various anomalious
zones in the project and work is being
planned to maximise the potential of this
zones.
However, with the new focus for the Group
and the fact the results from the current
identified
anomalies
have
been
underwhelming, the Group is reviewing the
potential of other resources within the
project.
As previously identified Lignite was
intersected in a number of wide spaced drill
holes during the gold exploration phase. The
Lignite was located in broad paleo-valleys
within the shallow Tertiary aged sediments
that overlie the metamorphic basement in the
region.
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Substantial lignite resources are known to
occur to the north and east of the Salmon
Gums licences.
Lignite material was intersected in various
thicknesses from one to thirteen metres.
Calorific testing of several samples returned
values ranging from 2,387-5,310 kcal/kg.
Delineation of the extent of the paleo-valleys
would require a substantial exploration
programme including geophysics and drilling.
Given the sustained and elevated energy
prices worldwide and the high demand for
coal, the Group is reviewing the potential to
determine if these or other resources could
be an area of focus in the future.
As part of the new strategy the Group is still
actively seeking new strategic partner to
assist in the overall development the project.
Fraser Range North Project,
Albany-Fraser Province
The Fraser Range North Project covers the
juncture of the Kurnalpi Terrane of the
Yilgarn Craton with the Albany-Fraser
Province. The Kurnalpi Terrane contains the
large-scale Claypan and Pinjin Faults.
Through several calcrete soil sampling
programmes the Group was able to define
surface gold anomalies.
Reworked parts of the Yilgarn Craton are
considered highly prospective for significant
gold mineralisation based on the relative
position of the Tropicana deposit, and other
major gold deposits globally.
Although alteration commonly associated
with gold mineralisation was detected in the
Nimpkish drill holes, no significant gold
intersections were returned. The 2011
planned drill program to further test and
extend the Nimpkish soil-gold anomaly is
currently on hold as a result of the Group’s
re-focus.
The plan to maximise the potential of this
zone, will include infill drilling around areas of
detected alteration and extending the drill
coverage at Nimpkish to test the western and
northern limits of the soil anomaly which
terminate at the transition to surficial
sediment cover related to salt lakes.

The Group continues to be encouraged by
the Nimpkish anomaly for the gold
prospectively which is further supported by
the fact significant gold was located by Sipa
Resources in a northeast-trending corridor.
The Group believes this corridor is an
important deformation zone that extends into
the Fraser Range North project and includes
the Nimpkish prospect.
The Group also continued to actively seek
new strategic partner to assist in the overall
development the project.
Other Projects
After due consideration and as a result of the
new strategic direction for the Group, the
following projects were surrendered by the
Group during 2011 and early 2012. The main
reasons for the surrender included issues
with access and a lack of positive drilling and
soil results on the projects:







Neale Project;
Cundeelee Project
Windarra Regional;
Windarra Tailings;
Booylgoo Springs; and
Tushtena.

NEALE PROJECT - ALBANY FRASER
PROVINCE (WA)
After due consideration of the project’s merits
and in light of the strategic refocus, the
Group has pursuant to the Tropicana Gold
Belt Alliance Agreement returned all interests
in this project back to Teck Australia Pty Ltd.
CUNDEELEE PROJECT- ALBANY FRASER
PROVINCE (WA)
Due to the extended and on-going difficulties
in obtaining access to the project, being able
to meet with the traditional owners and
concerns about unmarked graves in the area
and in light of the strategic refocus, the
Group surrendered the project.
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WINDARRA - LAVERTON (WA)
As previously announced due to the lack of
results in the last drilling program on the
project, the Windarra Tailings dam study
showed that the re-processing options for the
tailings to be uneconomic and the Group’s
strategic re-focus, in August 2011 the Group
formally withdrew their interest in the project
and returned all mining interests back to
Poseidon Nickel Ltd.
BOOYLGOO
(WA)

SPRINGS

–

SANDSTONE

After due consideration of the project’s merits
and in light of the strategic refocus, the
Group surrendered the project due to its
limited prospectivity.
TUSHTENA - TOK (ALASKA)
After due consideration of the project’s merits
and in light of the strategic refocus and
issues associated with access and location,
the Group relinquished all tenements relating
to the project in Alaska back to Tushtena
Resources Inc.
Project Generation
During 2011, twenty two (22) projects within
Australia and offshore, and including a gold
production opportunity, were assessed. The
Group continues to monitor progress and is
maintaining contact with several of the
project owners.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
As the framework of how the Board of Directors of Triton Gold Limited (“Company”) carries out its
duties and obligations, the Board has considered the eight principles of corporate governance as set
out in the ASX Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations.
The essential corporate governance principles are:
1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight;
2 Structure the Board to add value;
3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making;
4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting;
5 Make timely and balanced disclosure;
6 Respect the rights of shareholders;
7 Recognise and manage risk;
8 Remunerate fairly and responsibly.
1. Lay solid foundations for management and oversight.
Recommendation 1.1: Formalise and disclose the functions reserved to the Board and those
delegated to management.
Roles and Responsibilities:
The roles and responsibilities of the Board are to:

Oversee control and accountability of the Company;

Set the broad targets, objectives, and strategies;

Monitor financial performance;

Assess and review risk exposure and management;

Oversee compliance, corporate governance, and legal obligations;

Approve all major purchases, disposals, acquisitions and issue of new shares;

Approve the annual and half-year financial statements;

Appoint and remove the Company’s Auditor;

Appoint and assess the performance of the Managing Director and members of the senior
management team;

Report to shareholders.
Recommendation 1.2: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of
senior executives.
The Board regularly reviews the performance of senior executives.
Recommendation 1.3: Provide the information indicated in the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s
Guide to Reporting on Principle 1.
The evaluation of performance of senior executives takes place throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
2. Structure the Board to add value.
Recommendation 2.1: A majority of the Board should be independent Directors.
Recommendation 2.2: The Chairperson should be an independent Director.
Recommendation 2.3: The roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive should not be exercised by
the same individual.
Recommendation 2.4: The Board should establish a nomination committee.
Recommendation 2.5: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the
Board, its committees and individual directors.
Recommendation 2.6: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting
on Principle 2.
Membership
The Board’s membership and structure is selected to provide the Company with the most appropriate
direction in the areas of business controlled by the Company. The Board currently consists of three
members: a Non-Executive Chairman, a Managing Director and one Non-Executive Director.
The Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Director are considered independent.
Chairman and Managing Director
The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman and a Managing Director.
Nomination Committee
The Company has a formal charter for the Remuneration and Nomination Committee whose
members include Messrs James and Monti.
Due to the limited number of independent Board members, the Company is not currently in a position
to fully comply with this recommendation, but will undertake when appropriate for the Company to
rectify this position in the future.
Skills
The Directors bring a range of skills and backgrounds to the Board including geological, engineering,
law, finance, marketing, corporate governance, and stockbroking.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
3. Promote ethical and responsible decision-making.
Recommendation 3.1: Establish a code of conduct to guide the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
(or equivalent), and any other Key Executives as to:
3.1.1 The practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity;
3.1.2 The practices necessary to take into account legal obligations and the reasonable expectations
of shareholders;
3.1.3 The responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of
unethical practices.
Disclose the policy concerning trading in Company securities by Directors, officers, and employees.
The Company confirms in December 2010 the adoption and released on the ASX of it’s Securities
Trading Policy.
Recommendation 3.2: Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the
policy or a summary of that policy. The policy should include requirements for the board to establish
measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity for the board to assess annually both the
objectives and progress in achieving them.
Recommendation 3.3: Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives
for achieving gender diversity set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy and progress
towards achieving them.
Recommendation 3.4: Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women
employees in the whole organisation, women in senior executive positions and women on the board.
The Company does wish to report that on 15 December 2011, it adopted a Diversity Policy in
accordance with new Recommendation 3.2. A copy of the Company’s Diversity Policy was released
to ASX 28 December 2011. During the reporting year the Board had confirmed, if circumstances
allowed, that over the next five (5) to ten (10) years it aimed to increase the number of women in
senior positions in Company ten (10%) to twenty (20%) percent.
At the start of the reporting year the Company had the following:
 four (4) women out of a total of eight (8) employees;
 one (1) woman in a senior executive position; and
 zero (0) women on the Board.
However, due to the strategic review in July 2011 and the subsequent restructure most employee
positions were retrenched and there is only one (1) female employee left, thus the Company is not
able to observe the current policy. Due to the current size of the Company and until the Company is
able to secure a new key project and new staff are engaged, it is not feasible for the Company to
comply with this policy.
Standards
The Company is committed to its Directors and employees maintaining high standards of integrity,
and ensuring that activities are in compliance with the letter and spirit of both the law and Company
policies. Each staff member will be issued with the Company’s Policies and Procedures manual at
the beginning of their employment with the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
4. Safeguard integrity in financial reporting.
Recommendation 4.1: The Board should establish an audit committee.
Recommendation 4.2: Structure the audit committee so that it consists of:





Only non-executive Directors;
A majority of independent Directors;
An independent Chairperson, who is not Chairperson of the Board;
At least three members.

Recommendation 4.3: The audit committee should have a formal charter – Refer to
Recommendation 4.1.
Recommendation 4.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting
on Principle 4.
Integrity of Company’s Financial Position
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer will report in writing to the Board
that the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the half and full financial year present a
true and fair view, in all material respects, of the Company’s financial position and operational results
in accordance with relevant accounting standards.
Audit Committee
The Company has a formal charter for an Audit and Governance Committee whose members include
Messrs James and Monti. The Audit and Governance Committee provides an active role in the
following activities:
 Review the Company’s accounting policies;
 Review the content of financial statements;
 Review the scope of the external audit, its effectiveness, and independence of the external auditor;
 Ensure accounting records are maintained in accordance with statutory and accounting standard
requirements;
 Monitor systems used to ensure financial and other information provided is reliable, accurate, and
timely;
 Review the audit process with the external auditors to ensure full and frank discussion of audit
issues;
 Present half and full year financial statements to the Board.
The Chairperson of the Audit and Governance committee is Mr Monti.. The Company has determined
that Mr Monti is the most suitable director to chair the Audit and Governance committee due to his
competency in corporate governance and management, and the limited size of the board.
Due to the limited number of independent Board members, the Company is not currently in a position
to fully comply with this recommendation, but will undertake when appropriate for the Company to
rectify this position in the future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
5. Make timely and balanced disclosure.
Recommendation 5.1: Establish written policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with
ASX Listing Rules disclosure requirements, and to ensure accountability at a senior management
level for that compliance.
Being a listed entity on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX), the Company has an obligation
under the ASX Listing Rules to maintain an informed market with respect to its securities. Accordingly,
the Company advises the market of all information required to be disclosed under the Rules which the
Board believes would have a material effect on the price of the Company's securities.
The Company Secretary has been appointed as the person responsible for communication with the
ASX. This role includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure
requirements of the ASX Listing Rules, and overseeing and co-ordinating information disclosure to the
ASX, analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and the public.
All shareholders have access to the annual report on the Company’s website. Shareholders who
have elected to receive a hardcopy will do so.
Recommendation 5.2: Provide the information indicated in the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s
Guide to Reporting on Principle 5.
Disclosure is reviewed as a standard and routine agenda item at each Board meeting.

6. Respect the rights of shareholders.
Recommendation 6.1: Design and disclose a communications strategy to promote effective
communication with shareholders and encourage effective participation at general meetings.
Recommendation 6.2: Request the external auditor to attend the annual general meeting and be
available to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of the auditor's report.
The Company is committed to keeping shareholders fully informed of significant developments at the
Company. In addition to public announcements of its financial statements and significant matters, the
Company will provide the opportunity for shareholders to question the Board and management about
its activities at the Company's annual general meeting.
The Company's auditor, MGI Perth Audit Services Pty Ltd, will be in attendance at the annual general
meeting, and will also be available to answer questions from shareholders about the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and content of the auditor's report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
7. Recognise and manage risk
Recommendation 7.1: The Board or appropriate Board committee should establish policies on risk
oversight and management.
Recommendation 7.2: The Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or
equivalent) to state in writing to the Board that:
7.2.1 The statement given in accordance with best practice recommendation 4.1 (the integrity of
financial statements) is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal
compliance and control which implements the policies adopted by the Board.
7.2.2 The Company's risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating
efficiently and effectively in all material respects.
Recommendation 7.3: The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the Chief
Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) that the declaration
provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 is founded on a system of risk
management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in
relation to the financial reporting risks.
Recommendation 7.4: Provide the information indicated in the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s
Guide to reporting on Principle 7.
The Board oversees the Company's risk profile. The financial position of the Company and matters of
risk are considered by the Board on a regular basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that
controls and procedures to identify, analyse, assess, prioritise, monitor, and manage risk are in place,
being maintained and adhered to.
The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer have stated in writing to the Board that:
 The statement given in accordance with best practice recommendation 4.1 (the integrity of
financial statements) is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance
and control which implements the policies adopted by the board.
The Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently
and effectively in all material respects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
8. Remunerate fairly and responsibly
Recommendation 8.1: The Board should establish a Remuneration Committee.
Recommendation 8.2: Clearly distinguish the structure of Non-Executive Directors' remuneration
from that of executives.
Recommendation 8.3: Ensure that payment of equity-based executive remuneration is made in
accordance with thresholds set in plans approved by shareholders.
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
The objective of the Company's remuneration framework is to ensure reward for performance is
competitive and appropriate to the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with the
creation of value for shareholders, and conforms to market best practice. The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee ensures that executive rewards satisfy the following key criteria for good
reward governance practices:






Competitiveness and reasonableness;
Acceptability to the shareholders;
Performance linked;
Transparency;
Capital management.

The Company has structured an executive remuneration framework that is market competitive and
complementary to the reward strategy of the organization.
Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration and Nomination committee comprise of Messrs James and Monti.
Due to the limited number of independent Board members, the Company is not currently in a position
to fully comply with this recommendation, but will undertake when appropriate for the Company to
rectify this position in the future.
Directors' Remuneration
Further information on Directors' and executives' remuneration is set out in the Directors' Report.
Departure from Best Practice Recommendations
From 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011, the Company has complied with each of the Eight
Essential Corporate Governance Principles and Best Practice Recommendations published by the
ASX Corporate Governance Council except as disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

______________________________________________________________________
Your directors present their report on the Company and its controlled entities (the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Directors
The following persons were Directors of Triton Gold Limited (the “Company”) and were in office for
the entire period unless otherwise stated:
Mr Bradley Boyle (Executive Director, Appointed 27 April 2012)
Mr Malcolm James (Non-Executive Chairman, appointed 31 October 2011)
Mr Richard Monti (Non-Executive Director, appointed 16 August 2011)
Mr David Singleton (Non-Executive Director, appointed 18 May 2009, resigned 27 April 2012)
Mr John Loney (Chairman and Non-Executive Director, appointed 15 October 2007, resigned 31
October 2011)
Mr Allen Govey (Managing Director, appointed 17 May 2010, resigned 26 August 2011)
Mr Gregory Hall (Non-Executive Director, re-appointed 18 May 2009, resigned 16 August 2011)
Mr Trevor Osborne (Non-Executive Director, appointed 18 May 2009, resigned 20 May 2011)
Managing Director and Company Secretary (Australia)
Mr Bradley Boyle (Company Secretary)
Mr Boyle is the founder of Monolithic Corporate Group which is a Legal and Corporate Compliance
service company, based in West Perth. Mr Boyle has extensive experience as legal counsel and
company secretary. Mr Boyle currently represents a number of listed and unlisted companies.
Previously, Mr Boyle acquired a diverse range of corporate and private practice experience acting
for mining, commercial and government clients across a broad range of sectors, including acting
for the Australian Government Solicitor and Commonwealth Director of Public Prosecutions. He
also has extensive litigation experience including representing clients in mediations as well as
appearing in the Federal Court, Supreme Court, District Court, Lower courts and tribunals.
Mr. Boyle is also a Director for Sprint Energy Ltd, an Australian listed company and a Director of
two Not-For-Profit organizations. Mr Boyle is a Chartered Company Secretary, having obtained a
Graduate Diploma in Corporate Governance, and is a member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors, WA Law Society and the Australian Corporate Lawyers Association.
(Corporate Secretary, Canada)
Mr Michael Raven (resigned 22 March 2012)
Mr Raven obtained a Bachelor Degree in History (with honours) from The University of British
Columbia in 1995 and received a Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Victoria in 1998.
After law school, he clerked at the Supreme Court of British Columbia. Following his clerkship, Mr
Raven was an associate in the Vancouver office of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

_____________________________________________________________________
In 2005, Mr Raven left Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP Blakes to establish a private legal and
business consulting practice, which consists of advising private and public companies in industries
as diverse as mining, oil and gas, entertainment and technology with respect to corporate
structures, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance and private and public financings.
Since January 2010, Mr. Raven has practiced at Beadle Woods, Business Lawyers, a boutique
law firm specializing in corporate, business, real property and securities law.
Principal Activity
The principal activity of the Group during the financial year was to acquire, explore and develop
properties that are highly prospective for gold and other precious base metals.
Results of Operations
The loss of the consolidated Group for the financial year after tax amounted to $7,189,593 (2010:
$3,590,142).
Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
During the first half of the year, the Group issued 13,076,923 fully paid ordinary shares at 13 cents
to raise $1,666,369 net of costs.
On 14 July 2011, the Company announced that it had completed a strategic review of its current
exploration projects and of other potential projects in which it can partner. As a result, the
Company has scaled back its current exploration programme whilst consideration of the new
exploration opportunities is underway. At year end, all of the Company’s existing projects have
been impaired as a result of the change in strategic direction.
In September 2011 the Company issued 750,000 listed fully paid ordinary shares at a price of 5
cents per share ($37,500), and 1,500,000 listed ordinary options with an exercise price of 25 cents
per option and an expiry date of 31 December 2013 ($15,000). These shares and options were
issued in lieu of a cash payment for investor relations services rendered to the Company.
Going Concern Basis of Preparation
The 31 December 2011 financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis that
contemplates the continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and
extinguishment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the Group recorded a loss after tax of $7,189,593 (2010: $3,590,142) and had a net working
capital surplus of $1,187,382 (31 December 2010: surplus of $2,147,474).
The Board of Directors are aware that:
(i)

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecast, the Company will need to raise additional
capital, and

(ii)

the Company has the option, if necessary, to relinquish tenements and decrease
expenditure in order to maintain its cash balance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

_____________________________________________________________________
Based on these facts, the Directors consider the going concern basis of preparation to be
appropriate for this financial report.
In the event that the Group is not successful in raising funds from the issue of new equity, there
exists material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business
and at the amounts stated in the financial report.
Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid during the year and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend.
Indemnities
The Company, for a premium of $10,291 has taken out an insurance policy to cover its directors
and officers to indemnify them against any claims and negligence. The Company has agreed to
indemnify the current Directors and officers of its controlled entities for all liabilities to another
person, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The
agreement stipulates that the Company shall meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including
costs and expenses.
Significant Events After the Balance Sheet Date
On the 20 February 2012, the Company recovered the project acquisition secured loan of USD
$650,000 from a third party.
Mr Michael Raven, the Group’s Corporate Secretary in Canada, resigned from his position on 22
March 2012.
On 23 March 2012, the Group filed applications with the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission to voluntarily deregister a number of Australian subsidiaries. These are listed in Note
15 to the Annual Report.
During March 2012 the Group also relinquished all tenements relating to the Tushtena Project in
Alaska.
Since the end of the financial year, the Directors are not aware of any other matter of circumstance
not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements that has significantly or may
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated Group, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.
Proceedings on Behalf of the Company
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Group or intervene
in any proceedings to which the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf
of the Group for all or any part of these proceedings.
The Group was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
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_____________________________________________________________________
Information on Directors
Mr Malcolm James
Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and
options
Special responsibilities
Directorships held
other listed entities

in

Mr Richard Monti
Qualifications

Experience
Interest in shares and
options
Special responsibilities
Directorships held
other listed entities

in

Mr Bradley Boyle
Qualifications
Experience

Interest in shares and
options
Special responsibilities
Directorships held in
listed entities

– Chairman (Non-Executive) from 31 October 2011
– Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, Associate
of the Australasian Institute of Mines and Metallurgy, and business
graduate of RMIT University in Melbourne.
– For over 25 years has played an active role in identifying, exploring,
financing and developing a number of significant natural resource
projects in Australia and overseas.
– Nil ordinary shares
– Nil options
– Member of Audit and Governance Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees.
– Executive Director of Peninsula Energy Limited, and Non-Executive
Chairman of Alecto Minerals plc (an AIM UK listed company).
– Non-Executive Director from 16 August 2011
– BSc (Hons) (Geology) from University of Western Australia, and
Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from the
Securities Institute of Australia.
– Over 25 years working in the technical, marketing and financial
fields of the international exploration and mining industry.
– Indirect 9,115,384 ordinary shares (Poseidon Nickel Limited)
– Nil options
- Member of Audit and Governance Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees
– Poseidon Nickel Limited, Potash Minerals Limited, Jaguar Minerals
Limited and Azimuth Resources Limited.
– Executive Director from 27 April 2012
Bachelor of Laws (Murdoch University) and Graduate Diploma in
Applied Corporate Governance (Chartered Secretaries Australia)
–Mr Boyle is the founder of Monolithic Corporate Group which is a
Legal and Corporate Compliance service company, based in West
Perth. Mr Boyle has extensive experience as legal counsel and
company secretary having corporate and private practice experience
acting for mining, commercial and government clients across a broad
range of sectors.
– 93,037ordinary shares
– Nil
– Managing the daily operations of the Company
Sprint Energy Ltd. No other directorships of ASX listed entities in the
past 3 years.
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______________________________________________________________________
Directors’ Meetings
The number of Directors’ meetings and meetings of Committees of Directors held in the year and
the number of meetings attended by each of the Directors of the Company during the financial
year are:
Board of Directors’
Meetings

Name
Mr Malcolm James
Mr John Loney
Mr Richard Monti
Mr David Singleton
Mr Allen Govey
Mr Gregory Hall
Mr Trevor Osborne

Number
attended

Number
eligible
to attend

1
7
2
9
6
5
2

1
8
3
9
6
6
2

Audit and
Governance
Committee
Meetings
Number
Number
eligible
attended to attend
2
2
1

Remuneration and
Nomination
Committee Meetings

Number
attended

Number
eligible
to attend

3
3
3
-

3
3
3
-

2
2
-1

Details of Key Management Personnel
Directors
Mr Bradley Boyle
Mr Malcolm James
Mr John Loney
Mr Allen Govey
Mr Richard Monti
Mr Gregory Hall
Mr Trevor Osborne
Mr David Singleton

Managing Director (Executive) – 27 April 2012
Chairman (Non-Executive) – from 31 October 2011
Chairman (Non-Executive) – until 31 October 2011
Managing Director (Executive) – until 26 August 2011
Director (Non-Executive) – from 16 August 2011
Director (Non-Executive) – until 16 August 2011
Director (Non-Executive) – until 20 May 2011
Director (Non-Executive) - from 18 May 2009 until 27 April 2012

Executives
Mr Michael Raven
Mr Brad Boyle
Mr Jay Stephenson

Corporate Secretary (Canada) – until 22 March 2012
Managing Director and Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Directors’ Shareholdings, Contracts, and Benefits
The interest of each Director in the share capital of the Company at the date of this report and as
contained in the register of directors’ shareholdings of the Company is shown in Note 23 of this
annual report.
Since the end of the financial year, no Director of the Company has received, or become entitled to
receive, a benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received
or due and receivable by directors shown in the accounts) by reason of a contract made by the
Company with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or a Company in which
the director has a substantial financial interest, other than as disclosed in Note 23 of the accounts.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

______________________________________________________________________
Details of Key Management Personnel (continued)
REMUNERATION REPORT (audited)
(a) Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration
The following report determines the principles used to determine the nature and amount of
remuneration. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Committee) is responsible for
determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the Directors and Key Management
Personnel. The role also includes responsibility for share option schemes, superannuation
entitlements, retirement and termination entitlements, fringe benefit policies, liability insurance
policies and other terms of employment.
The Committee will review the arrangements having regard to performance, relevant comparative
information and at its discretion may obtain independent expert advice on the appropriateness of
remuneration packages. Remuneration packages are set at levels intended to attract and retain
Key Management Personnel capable of managing the Company’s activities.
The practices of negotiation and annual review of Executive Managers’ performance and
remuneration are carried out, in an informal way, by the Executive Manager who makes
recommendations to the Committee. The Chairman of the Board who makes recommendations to
the full Board undertakes, in an informal way, the review of the Executive Manager’s performance
and remuneration. There is no formal relationship between remuneration and performance.
The Committee will meet at least annually or as required, usually on the anniversary date of each
service agreement for the particular Director and/or Key Management Personnel. At these
meetings, the particular Director and/or Key Management Personnel will declare his/her interest
and not vote, and he/she will depart from the meeting, so as not to be present whilst the issue is
being discussed.
The executive pay and reward framework has three components:




base pay and benefits;
long-term incentives through directors options (refer Note 23); and
other remuneration such as superannuation.

The combination of these comprises the Key Management Personnel total remuneration.
(b) Details of Remuneration
Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emoluments of each of the key
management personnel of the Company and the consolidated Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in the following tables. Details of job titles of other key management
personnel can be found in the Key Management Personnel section of the Directors’ report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

______________________________________________________________________
REMUNERATION REPORT (audited) (continued)
(b) Details of Remuneration (continued)
Year 2011

Shortterm
benefits
Cash
Salary
and Fees

Postemployment
benefits
Superannuation

Sharebased
Payment
Options

Termination
Payments

Total

Percent of
Remuneration
that is
Performance
Based

$

$

$

$

%

$

Name
Directors
Mr Malcolm James****
Mr John Loney
Mr Allen Govey
Mr Richard Monti
Mr Gregory Hall
Mr David Singleton***
Mr Trevor Osborne*
Company Secretaries
Mr Bradley Boyle **
Mr Michael Raven

Year 2010

42,917
142,200
11,304
39,394
30,000
13,438

3,863
14,684
1,017
1,350
-

-

44,601
-

46,780
189,041
12,321
40,744
30,000
13,438

-

190,076
469,329

7,435
28,349

(12,444)

44,601

197,511
529,835

-

Shortterm
benefits
Cash
Salary
and Fees

Postemployment
benefits
Superannuation

Sharebased
Payment
Options

Termination
Payments

Total

Percent of
Remuneration
that is
Performance
Based

$

$

$

$

%

(12,444)

a

$

Name
Directors
Mr John Loney
Mr Allen Govey
Mr Gregory Hall
Mr David Singleton***
Mr Trevor Osborne*
Company Secretaries
Mr Bradley Boyle**
Mr Michael Raven

46,250
155,113
96,100
30,000
46,313

4,297
13,960
2,700
-

10,622
-

-

50,547
179,695
98,800
30,000
46,313

-

113,182
579
487,537

20,957

10,622

-

113,182
579
519,116

-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

______________________________________________________________________
Details of Key Management Personnel (continued)
REMUNERATION REPORT (audited) (continued)
(b) Details of Remuneration (continued)
* Note: In addition to Director Fees, Mr Trevor Osborne was paid a daily rate of $750 for extra
consulting and technical services to the Company when required. Mr Stephenson is engaged on a
consultancy basis and remunerated through their respective companies. Fees paid to Mr
Stephenson include the services of additional personnel.
** Note: Mr Boyle was engaged on a consultancy basis until 29 August 2011, when he was
employed as the Executive Manager of the Company.
*** Note: This is paid to Poseidon Nickel Limited, a company where Mr. David Singleton is the
Managing Director.
**** Note: Mr James was appointed on 31 October 2011. Under the terms of his agreement, he is
entitled to an annual Director’s fee of $38,000 excluding superannuation. Mr James has waived his
fees until such time as the Company secures a cornerstone project or further capital funding.
a

Note: Mr Govey resigned during August 2011, consequently forfeiting previously issued options.
As the attached service conditions were not met, the cumulative expense has been reversed.
(c) Service Agreements
In August 2011 a service agreement was executed between the Company and Mr Boyle to provide
services as the Executive Manager. Under the terms of Mr. Boyle’s engagement, he is responsible
for the day to day management of the Company. Additionally, Mr Boyle also provides legal and
company secretarial services.
Key terms of the agreement provide for the following:
 an annual salary of $240,000;
 an engagement term of six (6) months;
 a termination notice period of:
o 3 months (given by the Company)
o 2 months (given by the Executive); and
 a termination payment equal to 3 months remuneration in lieu of notice.

There are no other service agreements in place for Executive or Non-Executive Directors.
(d) Share-based Compensation
No options were granted to Directors or key employees during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

______________________________________________________________________
REMUNERATION REPORT (audited) (continued)
(e) Equity Instruments Issued on Exercise of Remuneration Options
No equity instruments were issued during the period to Directors or other Key Management
Personnel as a result of options exercised that had previously been granted as compensation.
During 2010, the Company issued 1.2 million options to two Key Management Personnel. These
were forfeited due to their resignations during the 2011 financial year. This movement is disclosed
in Note 23.
This concludes the audited Remuneration Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

______________________________________________________________________
Environmental Regulation
The Group holds various exploration licences to regulate its exploration activities in Australia.
These licences include conditions and regulations with respect to rehabilitation of areas disturbed
during the course of exploration activities. However, the Board believes that it has adequate
systems in place for the management of its environmental requirements and is not aware of any
breach of environmental requirements as they apply to the Group.
Loans to Directors
No loans have been made to Directors of the Company and the specified executives of the
consolidated Group, including their personally-related entities.
Shares under Option
Unissued ordinary shares of Triton Gold Limited under option at the date of this report are as
follows:
Expiry date

Exercise Price

31/12/2013

$0.25

Number under option
30,231,250
30, 231,250

No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the
Company or of any other entities.
Shares Issued on the Exercise of Options
There were no ordinary shares of the Company issued during or since the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 on the exercise of options.
Non–Audit Services
The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the Audit and Governance Committee, is
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. MGI Perth, an entity
associated with MGI Perth Audit Services, provided $5,000 of accounting and taxation services for
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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_____________________________________________________________________
Auditors’ Independence Declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2011 has been received
and can be found on page 62 of the annual report.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

_________________________________
Malcolm James
Chairman
Dated at Perth this 27 April 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Note

Revenue

4

Accountancy expenses
Computer expenses
Consultants fees
Depreciation
Directors’ fees
Employee benefits expenses
Insurance
Investor relations
Legal costs
(Loss)/ Profit on disposal of plant and
equipment
Rent and utilities
Travel and accommodation
Exploration and evaluation expenditure
not capitalised
Impairment loss on exploration and
evaluation assets
Other administration expenses

8

9

Results from operating activities
Financial income
Financial expense

4

Net financing income
Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

12

Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Movement in the fair value of available-forsale assets
Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributed to the equity holders of Triton
Gold Limited

Loss per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders – basic and diluted

19

2011
$

2010
$

45,069

107,782

(51,483)
(25,790)

(59,082)
(32,598)

(190,908)

(297,731)

(32,201)
(113,109)
(462,691)
(31,803)
(107,232)
(23,660)

(34,244)
(151,132)
(543,456)
(34,517)
(183,173)
(32,617)

(34,800)
(68,558)
(39,986)

16,814
(105,494)
(62,619)

(42,573)

(101,256)

(5,912,819)
(195,676)

(2,033,887)
(141,640)

(7,288,220)

(3,688,850)

101,422
(2,795)

100,624
(1,916)

98,627

98,708

(7,189,593)
-

(3,590,142)
-

(7,189,593)

(3,590,142)

(192,612)

60,260

(7,382,205)

(3,529,882)

Cents

Cents

(6.82)

(4.35)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Note

2011
$

2010
$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

5
6

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Total Non-Current Assets

7
8
9

TOTAL ASSETS

585,035
663,270

2,128,311
299,016

1,248,305

2,427,327

97,879
84,294
-

290,491
146,764
4,405,874

182,173

4,843,129

1,430,478

7,270,456

51,692
9,231

223,868
55,985

60,923

279,853

60,923

279,853

1,369,555

6,990,603

16,983,173
127,183
(15,740,801)

15,279,304
262,507
(8,551,208)

1,369,555

6,990,603

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

10
11

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

13
14

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Ordinary
Share
Capital

CONSOLIDATED
Balance at 1 January 2010

Available- Foreign
Option
For-Sale Currency Premium
Reserve Translation Reserve
Reserve
$
$
$

$

Accumulated
Losses

Total

$

$

13,745,569

150,158

39,645

-

(4,961,066)

8,974,306

-

-

-

-

(3,590,142)

(3,590,142)

Unrealised gain on available-forsale financial assets, net of
deferred tax liability

-

60,260

-

-

-

60,260

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

-

60,260

-

-

(3,590,142)

(3,529,882)

1,598,735

-

-

-

-

1,598,735

(65,000)

-

-

-

-

(65,000)

-

-

-

12,444

-

12,444

15,279,304

210,418

39,645

12,444

(8,551,208)

6,990,603

15,279,304

210,418

39,645

12,444

(8,551,208)

6,990,603

-

-

-

-

(7,189,593)

(7,189,593)

Unrealised loss on available-forsale financial assets, net of
deferred tax liability

-

(192,612)

-

-

-

(192,612)

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

-

(192,612)

-

-

(7,189,593)

(7,382,205)

1,737,500

-

-

-

-

1,737,500

(33,631)

-

-

-

-

(33,631)

Options issued during the year

-

-

-

75,043

-

75,043

Options lapsed during the year

-

-

-

(17,755)

-

(17,755)

16,983,173

17,806

39,645

69,732

(15,740,801)

1,369,555

Comprehensive Income:
Loss for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Transactions with owners
recorded directly in equity
Issue of shares
Share issue costs
Options issued during the year
Balance at 31 December 2010

Balance at 1 January 2011
Comprehensive Income:
Loss for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Transactions with owners
recorded directly in equity
Issue of shares
Share issue costs

Balance at 31 December 2011

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net Cash Outflow
From Operating Activities

21

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposals of plant and
equipment
Payments for exploration and evaluation
expenditure
Loan to Gold Mines Peru
Net Cash Outflow
From Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Payment of capital raising costs
Net Cash Inflow
From Financing Activities
Net Decrease in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the financial year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end
of the financial year

5

2011
$

2010
$

190,859
(1,350,435)
76,178

107,782
(1,652,993)
100,624

(1,083,398)

(1,444,587)

(4,531)

(151,198)

-

25,637

(1,506,945)
(614,771)

(2,013,830)
-

(2,126,247)

(2,139,391)

1,700,000
(33,631)

1,300,000
(65,000)

1,666,369

1,235,000

(1,543,276)

(2,348,978)

2,128,311

4,477,289

585,035

2,128,311

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
NOTE: 1. REPORTING ENTITY
The consolidated financial statements represent Triton Gold Limited and its controlled entities (the
“Consolidated Group” or “Group”). Triton Gold Limited is a company limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
The separate financial statements of the parent entity, Triton Gold Limited, have not been
presented within this financial report as permitted by the Corporations Act 2001.
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the consolidated group
in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied,
unless otherwise stated.
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would
result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions,
events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the
financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements have
been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable,
by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012.
Functional and Presentation Currency
Both the functional and presentation currency for the Group is in Australian Dollars.
Going Concern Basis of Preparation
The 31 December 2011 financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis that
contemplates the continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and
extinguishment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the Group recorded a loss after tax of $7,189,593 (2010: $3,590,142) and had a net working
capital surplus of $1,187,382 (31 December 2010: surplus of $2,147,474).
The Board of Directors are aware that:
(i)

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecast, the Company will need to raise additional
capital, and

(ii)

the Group has the option, if necessary, to relinquish tenements and decrease
expenditure in order to maintain its cash balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
Based on these facts, the Directors consider the going concern basis of preparation to be
appropriate for this financial report.
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of Preparation (continued)
Going Concern Basis of Preparation (continued)
In the event that the Group is not successful in raising funds from the issue of new equity, there
exists material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business
and at the amounts stated in the financial report.
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:
Note 9 – Capitalisation of Exploration and Evaluation Assets
Note 20 – Valuation of Share-based Payments
(b) Principles of Consolidation
Business Combinations
For every business combination, the Group identifies the acquirer, which is the combining entity
that obtains control over the other combining entities. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred from the acquirer.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment in the Company financial
statements.
(c) Income Tax
The charge for current income tax expenses is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the consolidated group will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to
be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.
Tax Consolidation
Triton Gold Limited and its Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group
under tax consolidation legislation. As a consequence, all members of the tax-consolidated group
are taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is
Triton Gold Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Each entity in the Group recognises its own current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such
taxes are measured using the stand-alone taxpayer approach to allocation. Current tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits in the subsidiaries are
immediately transferred to the head entity. The Group notified the Australian Taxation Office that it
had formed an income tax-consolidated group to apply from 1 July 2006. The tax-consolidated
group has entered into a tax funding agreement whereby each company in the group contributes
to the income tax payable by the group in proportion to their contribution to the Group’s taxable
income. Differences between the amounts of net tax assets and liabilities derecognised and the
net amount recognised pursuant to the funding arrangement are recognised as either a
contribution by, or distribution to, the head entity.
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and
capitalised borrowing costs. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of
any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant
and equipment. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Gains and
losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognised net within other income in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued
assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to retained
earnings. The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
(e) Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to
allocate the cost less the estimated residual value over the estimated useful life of each asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Class of Fixed Asset
Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements

Useful Life
3 – 6 years
2 – 5 years

The assets’ carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Profit and loss on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.
These amounts are included in the statement of comprehensive income.
(f) Financial Instruments
Non-Derivative Financial Instruments
Recognition
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in
a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets: loans and receivables and availablefor-sale financial assets.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and other receivables.
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale and that are not classified in any of the other categories. The Group’s
investments in equity securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment
losses, are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value
reserve. When an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred
to the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair Value
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for financial
assets is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include reference to the fair values of recent arm’s length
transactions, involving the same instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
(g) Impairment
Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU”).
Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment
is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a
corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which
the corporate asset belongs.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Impairment (continued)
Financial Assets (including Receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that
can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.
Financial Assets (including Receivables) (continued)
The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables and available-for-sale investment
securities at a specific asset level.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the
fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss.
The cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and
amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time value are reflected as a component of
interest income.
(h) Foreign Currency Translation - Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transaction. Translation differences on
monetary items are recognised in the income statement except when deferred in equity and
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Employee Benefits
Short-Term Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profitsharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Other Long-Term Employee Benefits
Provision is made for the liability due to employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the reporting date. Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year
together with benefits arising out of wages and salaries, sick leave and annual leave which will be
settled after one year, have been measured at their nominal amount. Other employee benefits
payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made for those benefits.
Contributions made to defined employee superannuation funds are charged as expenses when
incurred.
(j) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.
(k) Revenue
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(l) Finance Income and Finance Costs
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial
assets), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, changes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in
profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on
the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted
securities is the ex-dividend date.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance
cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.
(m) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax,
except:
(i)

Where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant taxation
authority, it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of an asset or as part of
an item of expenditure.

(ii)

Receivables and payables are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for
the GST component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash
flows.
(n) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current
financial year where required by Australian Accounting Standards or as a result in changes in
accounting policy.
(o) Exploration and Evaluation Assets
Expenditure on exploration and evaluation is incurred either to maintain an interest or in earning an
interest and is accounted for in accordance with the ‘area of interest’ method. Exploration and
evaluation expenditure is capitalised provided the rights to tenure of the area of interest is current
and either:


the exploration and evaluation activities are expected to be recouped through successful
development and exploitation of the area of interest or, alternatively, by its sale; or



exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not at the reporting date
reached a stage that permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of
economically recoverable reserves, and active significant operations in, or relating to, the
area of interest are continuing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Exploration and Evaluation Assets (Continued)
Expenditure which fails to meet the conditions outlined above is written off, furthermore, the
directors regularly review the carrying value of exploration and evaluation expenditure and make
write downs if the values are not expected to be recoverable.
Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognised as assets at their cost of acquisition, as
determined by the requirements of AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources.
Exploration assets acquired are reassessed on a regular basis and these costs are carried forward
provided that at least one of the conditions referred to in AASB 6 is met.
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to acquisition in respect of an
exploration asset acquired, is accounted for in accordance with the policy outlined above for
exploration expenditure incurred by or on behalf of the entity.
Acquired exploration assets are not written down below acquisition cost until such time as the
acquisition cost is not expected to be recovered.
When an area of interest is abandoned, any expenditure carried forward in respect of that area is
written off.
Expenditure is not carried forward in respect of any area of interest/mineral resource unless the
Group’s rights of tenure to that area of interest are current.
The recoverability of the carrying amount of the deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure is
dependent on the successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively the sale, of
the respective areas of interest.
When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource have been
demonstrated then any capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is reclassified as
capitalised development expenditure. Prior to reclassification, capitalised exploration and
evaluation expenditure is assessed for impairment. Costs related to the acquisition of properties
that contain mineral resources are allocated separately to specific areas of interest. These costs
are capitalised until the viability of the area of interest is determined.
Impairment
The carrying value of capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is assessed for
impairment at the cash generating unit level whenever facts and circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Impairment exists when the
carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
The asset or cash-generating unit is then written down to its recoverable amount. Any impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
(p) Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Share-based Payment Transactions
The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as
an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the
vesting date. For share based-payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair
value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up
for differences between expected and actual outcomes.
The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which
are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over
the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to payment. The liability is
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the
liability are recognised as personnel expense in profit or loss.
(r) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted
The Group has adopted all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective
for the current reporting period.
New and revised Standards and amendments thereof and Interpretations effective for the current
reporting period that are relevant to the Group include:




AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (amendment) effective 1 January 2011
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendment) effective 1 February 2010
Improvements to AASBs (May 2010)

The adoption of these amendments has not resulted in any changes to the Company’s accounting
policies and has no effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior periods.
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for 31 December 2011 reporting periods. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out as follows.
(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009‑11 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) (effective from 1 January 2013*)
AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2013* but is
available for early adoption. When adopted, the standard will affect in particular the Group’s
accounting for its available-for-sale financial assets, since AASB 9 only permits the recognition of
fair value gains and losses in other comprehensive income if they relate to equity investments that
are not held for trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted (continued)
There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred from AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not
been changed. The Group has not yet decided when to adopt AASB 9.
* In December 2011, the IASB delayed the application date of IFRS 9 to 1 January 2015. The
AASB is expected to make an equivalent amendment to AASB 9 shortly.
(ii) AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements
Standards (effective 1 January 2013)
In August 2011, the AASB issued a suite of five new and amended standards which address the
accounting for joint arrangements, consolidated financial statements and associated disclosures.
AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in AASB 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities.
The core principle that a consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as if they are a
single economic entity remains unchanged, as do the mechanics of consolidation. However, the
standard introduces a single definition of control that applies to all entities. It focuses on the need
to have both power and rights or exposure to variable returns. Power is the current ability to direct
the activities that significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and can be positive, negative or
both. Control exists when the investor can use its power to affect the amount of its returns. There
is also new guidance on participating and protective rights and on agent/principal relationships.
While the Group does not expect the new standard to have a significant impact on its composition,
it has yet to perform a detailed analysis of the new guidance in the context of its various investees
that may or may not be controlled under the new rules.
AASB 11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint arrangements. The focus
is no longer on the legal structure of joint arrangements, but rather on how rights and obligations
are shared by the parties to the joint arrangement. Based on the assessment of rights and
obligations, a joint arrangement will be classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method, and the choice to proportionately consolidate
will no longer be permitted. Parties to a joint operation will account their share of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities in much the same way as under the previous standard. AASB 11
also provides guidance for parties that participate in joint arrangements but do not share joint
control.
The Group’s investment in the joint venture partnership will be classified as a joint venture under
the new rules.
AASB 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards,
AASB 10 and AASB 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in AASB 127
and AASB 128.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted (continued)
Application of this standard by the Group will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements, but will impact the type of information disclosed in relation to the Group’s
investments.
Amendments to AASB 128 provide clarification that an entity continues to apply the equity method
and does not remeasure its retained interest as part of ownership changes where a joint venture
becomes an associate, and vice versa. The amendments also introduce a “partial disposal”
concept. The Group is still assessing the impact of these amendments.
The Group does not expect to adopt the new standards before their operative date. They would
therefore be first applied in the financial statements for the annual reporting period ending 30
December 2013.
(iii) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 13 (effective 1 January 2013)
AASB 13 was released in September 2011. It explains how to measure fair value and aims to
enhance fair value disclosures. The Group has yet to determine which, if any, of its current
measurement techniques will have to change as a result of the new guidance. It is therefore not
possible to state the impact, if any, of the new rules on any of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. However, application of the new standard will impact the type of information
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Group does not intend to adopt the new
standard before its operative date, which means that it would be first applied in the annual
reporting period ending 30 December 2013.
(s) Segment Reporting
Determination and Presentation of Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expense that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is
available.
Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
mainly corporate assets (primarily the Group’s headquarters), head office expenses, and income
tax assets and liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.
(t) Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for any bonus elements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Earnings per Share (EPS) (Continued)
Diluted Earnings per Share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with the dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares
assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.
NOTE: 3. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
Equity Instruments
The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted
closing bid price at the reporting date.
Trade and Other Receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for
disclosure purposes.
Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value
of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting
date.
Share-Based Payment Transactions
The fair value of the employees share is measured using an appropriate valuation model.
Measurement inputs include the share price on the measurement date, the exercise price of the
instrument, expected volatility (based on an evaluation of the Company’s historic volatility,
particularly over the historic period commensurate with the expected term), expected term of the
instruments (based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour), expected
dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds). Service and non-market
performance conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into account in determining fair
value.
2011
$

2010
$

NOTE: 4. REVENUE AND FINANCIAL INCOME
Operating Activities
Revenue
Total Revenue

45,069
45,069

107,782
107,782

Operating Activities
Interest income
Unrealised exchange gain

76,178
25,244

100,624
-

101,422

100,624

Total Financial Income

41
Triton Gold Limited I Level 4, 66 Kings Park Road, West Perth WA 6005 I T +61 89215 4222 I F +61 89226 1799

For personal use only

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
2011
$

2010
$

NOTE: 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents in the
Statement of Cash Flows

42,646
542,389

32,203
2,096,108

585,035

2,128,311

640,016
23,254
663,270

160,037
138,979
299,016

NOTE: 6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade receivables
Receivable from Gold Mine Peru
GST and other receivable
Total Current Trade and Other Receivables

Current trade receivables, other than the secured loan noted below, are non interest bearing and
generally on 30-day terms.
* In May 2011 the Company provided a secured loan to a potential joint venture partner, on the
basis of entering into a transaction to acquire an equity interest in a mining project. The loan is
secured by shares and a personal guarantee from the chairman of the potential joint venture
partner. Subsequently, the transaction did not proceed between the entity and the Company and
the loan was repaid on the 20 February 2012.
NOTE: 7. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-Current
Listed investments at fair value
Total available-for-sale financial assets

97,879
97,879

290,491
290,491

Total Financial Assets

97,879

290,491

Available-for-sale investments consist of investments in ordinary shares and therefore have no
fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The fair value of listed available-for-sale investments is based
on quoted prices in active markets. The above-mentioned shares are held in Laurentian Goldfields
Limited, a company listed on the Canadian Securities Exchange.
NOTE: 8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment
At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Movements in carrying amounts
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Write offs/ Disposals
Depreciation expense
Carrying amount at end of year

135,818
(51,524)

293,189
(146,425)

84,294

146,764

146,764
4,531
(34,800)
(32,201)

38,634
151,197
(8,823)
(34,244)

84,294

146,764
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
2011
$

2010
$

NOTE: 9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Exploration at cost:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expenditure during the year
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

4,405,874
1,506,945
(5,912,819)

4,425,931
2,013,830
(2,033,887)

-

4,405,874

1,506,945
1,506,945

1,954,031
59,799
2,013,830

Balance at the end of the financial year

Reconciliation of expenditure during the year:
Exploration of tenements
Holding costs of tenements
Total Exploration Expenditure

Recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration assets is dependent on the successful
development and commercial exploitation or sale of the areas of interest. Management reassess
the carrying value of the Group’s tenements at each half year, or at a period other than that,
should there be any indication of impairment.
The impairment loss on exploration and evaluation assets was in relation to the Windarra Tailings
Dam and Windarra Regional Project, Neale, Booylgoo Spring, Cundeelee and Tushtena projects
which were impaired due to the Directors’ decision to abandon these projects.

NOTE: 10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors
Accruals
Other payables

7,818
28,760
15,114

67,912
130,673
25,283

Total Trade and Other Payables

51,692

223,868

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and usually settled within 45 days.

NOTE: 11. PROVISIONS
Current
Provision for annual leave

9,231

55,985

Total Provisions

9,231

55,985

55,985
46,074
(92,828)
9,231

19,858
40,412
(4,285)
55,985

Movement in provisions:
Opening balance
Increase
Decrease
Closing balance
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
2011
$

2010
$

NOTE: 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income tax expense
Current income tax expense
Under/(over) provision of prior year’s tax
Deferred tax expense
Total income tax expense
Reconciliation between tax expense and pre-tax
loss:
Accounting loss before income tax
At the domestic income tax rate of 30%
- Expenditure not allowed for income tax purposes
- Change in unrecognised temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of
comprehensive income
Unrecognised deferred tax assets at 31 December
Unused tax losses
Potential tax benefit @ 30%
Tax losses offset against tax liabilities
Unrecognised tax benefit

-

-

(7,189,593)
(2,156,878)

(3,590,142)
(1,077,043)

22,609
2,134,269

4,589
1,072,454

-

-

11,147,468
3,344,240
(17,235)
3,327,005

10,034,918
3,010,475
(1,396,782)
1,613,693

Potential deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities attributable to tax losses have not been
brought to account because the Directors do not believe it is appropriate to regard realisation of
the future income tax benefits as probable as at the date of this report.
The benefits of these tax losses will only be obtained if:
(i) Future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the
benefit to be realised;
(ii) The conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be compiled with;
and
(iii) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group in realising the benefit.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
2011
$
Deferred income tax
Statement of financial position
Deferred income tax relates to the following:
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Exploration and evaluation assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Foreign exchange reserve
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets used to offset
deferred tax liabilities

2010
$

5,341
11,894

1,321,763
63,125
11,894

(17,235)

(1,396,782)

-

-

NOTE: 13. ISSUED CAPITAL
Number of Shares
2011
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid

107,370,759

$

2010

2011

2010

93,543,836

16,983,173

15,279,304

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the rights to dividends.
Movements in ordinary shares issued
Number
of Shares
Balance 1 January 2010
1 Jan 2010
Issue of Shares for services
29 Jan 2010
Issue of Shares and Options to
Investor Relations Company *
8 Apr 2010
Issue of Shares for services
27 May 2010 Issue of Shares for services
8 Oct 2010
Issue of Shares for services
21 Dec 2010 Share Placement
Capital raising costs
Balance 31 December 2010
28 Jan 2011
22 Feb 2011
9 Sep 2011

Share Placement
Share Placement
Issue of Shares and Options to
Investor Relations Company *
Capital raising costs

Balance 31 December 2011

81,481,409
165,000

Issue
Price
$
0.20

Total
$
13,745,569
33,000

125,000
680,520
483,873
608,034
10,000,000
93,543,836

0.20
0.16
0.1565
0.0921
0.13

25,000
108,998
75,737
56,000
1,300,000
(65,000)
15,279,304

7,903,630
5,173,293

0.13
0.13

1,027,472
672,528

750,000
-

0.05

107,370,759

37,500
(33,631)
16,983,173
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NOTE: 13. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)
Movements in options

Total 1 January 2010
29 Jan 2010
Issue of Options for Services
29 Apr 2010
Issue of Options to Director
29 Jul 2010
Issue of Options to Employees
Total 31 December 2010
14 Feb 2011
Expiry of Options
22 Feb 2011
Issue of Options for Services *
15 May 2011
Expiry of Options
30 Jun 2011
Director Options forfeited
26 Aug 2011
Employee Options forfeited
9 Sep 2011
Issue of Options for Services *
Total 31 December 2011
*

Number
Exercise
of Options
Price
32,637,040
250,000 $0.25
1,000,000 $0.295
200,000 $0.158
34,087,040
(4,935,138)
2,000,000
(1,146,222)
(1,000,000)
(200,000)
1,500,000
30,305,680

$0.25

$0.25

The Company agreed to issue up to one million shares and two million options to an investor
relations company over a period of 24 months from August 2009 for the provision of investor
relation services in North America. The final tranche of shares and options were issued on 9
September 2011.

Capital Management
The Director’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they may continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2010.
Due to the nature of the Group’s activities, being mineral exploration, the Group does not have ready
access to credit facilities, with the primary source of funding being equity raisings. Therefore, the focus
of the Group’s capital risk management is the current working capital position against the requirements
of the Group to meet exploration programmes and corporate overheads. The Group’s strategy is to
ensure appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet anticipated operating requirements, with a view to
initiating appropriate capital raisings as required.
The working capital positions of the Group at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 are as
follows:
2011
$
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Working Capital Position

585,035
663,270
(51,692)
(9,231)
1,187,382

2010
$
2,128,311
299,016
(223,868)
(55,985)
2,147,474

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
2011
$

2010
$

17,806
39,645
69,732
127,183

210,418
39,645
12,444
262,507

NOTE: 14. RESERVES
Available-for-sale reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Option premium reserve
Total Reserves

The option reserve records items recognised as expense on valuation of employee share options.
The foreign currency reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of a foreign
controlled subsidiary.
The available-for-sale reserve records revaluation of financial assets.
NOTE: 15. CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Subsidiaries of Triton Gold
Limited:

Country of
Incorporation

Percentage Owned (%)
2011

2010

Triton Gold (Operations) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Project A) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Project B) Pty Ltd*

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Project C) Pty Ltd*

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Project D) Pty Ltd*

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Grenville) Pty Ltd

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Sunday) Pty Ltd*

Australia

100

100

Triton Gold (Windarra) Pty Ltd*

Australia

100

100

Alaska

100

100

Triton Gold (Alaska) Pty Ltd

* On 23 March 2012, the Company filed applications with ASIC to voluntary deregister the subsidiaries due to
the lack of activity.

NOTE: 16. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Triton has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are used by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. The CODM of the Group is the Board of Directors. The Group has identified its
operating segments based on internal reports that are provided to the CODM on a regular basis.
During the financial year Triton operated in two principal locations, Australia and Alaska, which are
the operating segments of the Group. There are a number of exploration projects located in
Western Australia at various stages of development. The Tushtena project is located in Alaska.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 16. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment assets include the cost to acquire the tenement and the capitalised exploration costs of
those tenements.
The accounting policies applied for internal reporting purposed are consistent with those applied in
the preparation of these financial statements.

31 December 2011

Australia

Alaska

Treasury

Total

$

$

$

$

Reconciliation of segment
revenue to total revenue:
Interest revenue

-

-

76,178

76,178

Other revenue

45,069

-

25,244

70,313

Segment Revenue

45,069

-

101,422

146,491

Total Revenue per Statement of
Comprehensive Income

146,491

Reconciliation of segment loss
to net loss before tax:
Segment result

(5,052,530)

(857,793)

98,627

(5,811,696)

Corporate charges

(1,377,897)

Net Loss before Tax from
Continuing Operations

(7,189,593)

31 December 2010
Reconciliation of segment
revenue to total revenue:
Interest income

-

-

100,624

100,624

Other income

126,646

-

-

126,646

Segment Revenue

126,646

-

100,624

227,270

Total Revenue per Statement of
Comprehensive Income

227,270

Reconciliation of segment loss
to net loss before tax:
Segment result

(2,008,497)

-

98,708

(1,909,789)

Corporate charges

(1,680,353)

Net Loss before Tax from
Continuing Operations

(3,590,142)
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NOTE: 16. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Australia

Alaska

Treasury

Total

31 December 2011

$

$

$

$

Segment assets

84,294

-

1,346,184

Total group assets

1,430,478
1,430,478

31 December 2010
Segment assets

3,857,634

695,004

2,717,818

Total group assets

7,270,456
7,270,456

31 December 2011
Segment liabilities

10,717

-

50,206

Total group liabilities

60,923
60,923

31 December 2010
Segment liabilities

254,570

-

25,283

Total group liabilities

279,853
279,853

NOTE: 17. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
There are no significant contingent assets or liabilities at year end.
NOTE: 18. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
(i)

Operating Lease Commitments
2011
$

Payable – minimum lease payments
Not longer than one year

2010
$

18,000

43,503

Longer than one year, but not longer than five years

-

-

Longer than five years
Total

-

-

18,000

43,503
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 18. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (continued)
(ii)

Exploration Expenditure Commitments

In order to maintain the current rights of tenure to mining tenements, the Company has the
following exploration expenditure requirements up until the expiry of the leases. These obligations,
which are subject to renegotiation upon expiry of the leases, are not provided for in the financial
statements and are payable as follows.

Not longer than one year
Longer than one year, but not longer than five years
Longer than five years
Total

2011
$
968,500

2010
$
1,695,245

1,755,500

2,716,357

787,000

1,356,758

3,511,000

5,768,360

The sale, transfers or farm-out of exploration rights to third parties will reduce or extinguish the
above obligations.
NOTE: 19. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
(a) Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group

2011
cents
(6.82)

2010
cents
(4.35)

(b) Diluted loss per share
The diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share, as the exercise price
of the options outstanding is higher than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares since listing.
(c) Reconciliation of earnings to loss
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders

2011
$
(7,189,593)

2010
$
(3,590,142)

Earnings used to calculate basic EPS

(7,189,593)

(3,590,142)

105,467,108

82,548,281

(d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year used to calculate
basic EPS
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year used in calculating basic EPS
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NOTE: 20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(a) Share-based payments expense
2011
$
94,788

2010
$
12,444

Total share-based payments expense

94,788

12,444

Breakdown of share-based payments expense
Shares
Issued for corporate and investor related services

37,500

-

Total allocated against Issued Capital

37,500

-

5,311
69,732
(17,755)

12,444
-

Total allocated against Option Premium Reserve

57,288

12,444

Total

94,788

12,444

Share-based payments expense

Options
Issued to Directors and employees
Issued for corporate and investor related services
Reversal of previously recognised expenses

(b) Options
The following table details the number, weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) and movements
in share options issued as employment incentives or as payments to third parties for services
during the year.
2011
2011
Number
WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired/forfeited during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

34,087,040
3,500,000
(7,281,360)
30,305,680

0.369
0.250
0.800
0.251

2011
Number

Exercise
price

1,500,000

$0.25

28,731,250
30, 231,250

$0.25

(c) Options exercisable at reporting date

Listed options
Unlisted options:
- with AUD exercise price
Exercisable at reporting date
(d) Director and Employee Options

The objective of granting options to directors is to reward, retain and motivate the Directors of
Triton Gold Limited. The options vest with time as long as the director concerned remains a
director of the Company.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(e) Third Party Options
In order to reserve the Company’s cash, certain expenditure during the year has been paid by way
of issuing shares and/or options in lieu of cash payment.
(f) Options issued during 2011
Maximum term of options granted for investor relations and corporate advisory services during the
year are as follows:
 Unlisted options issued for corporate advisory and investor relations services – issued 22
February 2011 expiring on 31 December 2013.
 Listed options issued for investor relations services – issued 9 September 2011 expiring
on 31 December 2013.
The options must be exercised on or before the expiry date in cash.
Unlisted Options
The fair value of the 2,000,000 equity settled share options granted is estimated as at the date of
grant using a Black-Scholes model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31
December 2011.
Fair value at grant date
Share price at grant date
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected life
Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds)

2.74c
14c
25c
50%
2.9 years
-%
4.86%

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of $54,732 for these options.
Listed Options
The 1,500,000 listed options were valued according to the share market rate of $0.01 on the day of
issue. The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of $15,000 for these options.
(g) Options lapsed during 2011
During the year, Messrs Young and Govey resigned, consequently forfeiting their previously
issued options of 1 million and 200,000 respectively. As the service conditions were not met, the
cumulative expense has been reversed against profit and loss.
6,081,360 options previously issued in lieu of investor relation and corporate advisory services
also expired during the year.
(h) Shares issued during 2011

On 9 September 2011, the Company issued 750,000 shares at an issue price of $0.05 each in lieu
of payment for investor relations services. Refer to Note 13 for further details.

52
Triton Gold Limited I Level 4, 66 Kings Park Road, West Perth WA 6005 I T +61 89215 4222 I F +61 89226 1799

For personal use only

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 21. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
2011
$

2010
$

Loss after income tax
Non-cash flows in loss
- Gain on revaluation of foreign currency
receivable
- Loss/(Profit) on disposal of plant and equipment
- Depreciation
- Amortisation of setup costs
- Share based payments expense
- Impairment losses
Changes in assets & liabilities:
- Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable
- (Decrease)/increase in creditors & accruals
- (Decrease)/increase in provisions

(7,189,593)

(3,590,142)

(25,244)

-

34,800
32,201
94,788
5,912,819

(16,814)
34,244
697
12,444
2,033,887

275,762
(172,177)
(46,754)

(44,488)
89,458
36,127

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(1,083,398)

(1,444,587)

Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operating
Activities with Loss after Income Tax

NOTE: 22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Loans are made by the parent entity to wholly owned subsidiaries to fund exploration activities.
Loans outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are non-interest bearing, unsecured,
and are repayable upon notice having regard to the financial stability of the Company. The
Company made the following provisions for non-recoverability of these loans and investments:

Investments in subsidiaries

2011
$
1,449,469

2010
$
1,449,469

Provision for loss on investments

(1,449,469)

(1,083,658)

-

365,811

13,006,160

11,234,699

(12,995,655)

(6,199,770)

10,505

5,034,929

Net recoverable investment

Loans to subsidiaries
Provision for loss on intercompany loans
Net recoverable loan

The provisions for non-recovery of these loans and investments have been based on the
subsidiaries’ net asset positions, where applicable.

53
Triton Gold Limited I Level 4, 66 Kings Park Road, West Perth WA 6005 I T +61 89215 4222 I F +61 89226 1799

For personal use only

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 23. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a)

Directors
Names and positions held of parent entity Directors in office at any time during the financial
year are:
Mr Malcolm James
Chairman, Non-Executive – from 31 October 2011
Mr John Loney
Chairman, Non-Executive – until 31 October 2011
Mr Allen Govey
Chief Executive Officer – from 6 April 2010 until 26 August 2011
Managing Director – from 17 May 2010 until 26 August 2011
Mr Gregory Hall
Non-Executive Director - from 18 May 2009 until 16 August 2011
Mr Richard Monti
Non-Executive Director – from 16 August 2011
Mr Trevor Osborne
Non-Executive Director – from 18 May 2009 until 20 May 2011
Mr David Singleton
Non-Executive Director – from 18 May 2009 until 27 April 2012

(b)

Key management personnel
Names and positions held of Key Management Personnel (KMP) in office at any time during
the financial year are:
Mr Brad Boyle
Company Secretary, Legal Counsel - from 1 September 2009
Executive Manager - from 29 August 2011

(c)

Key management personnel compensation
2011
$

2010
$

Short term employee benefits

469,329

487,537

Share-based payments

(12,444)

10,622

Termination payments

44,601

-

Post-employment benefits

28,349

20,957

529,835

519,116
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NOTE: 23. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (continued)
(d)
Key management personnel shareholding
The number of ordinary shares in Triton Gold Limited held by each KMP of the Group during the
financial year is as follows:

Balance at the
start of the
year

Received
during the
year as
compensation

Received
during the
year on the
exercise of
options

-

-

-

-

-

Mr John Loney **

93,039

-

-

(93,039)

-

Mr Allen Govey **

100,000

-

-

(100,000)

-

Mr Gregory Hall **

1,355,310

-

-

(1,355,310)

-

Mr Trevor Osborne **

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr Richard Monti ***

-

Mr David Singleton ***
Company Secretaries

-

-

-

-

-

93,037

-

-

-

93,037

150,249
1,791,635

-

-

-

150,249

-

-

(1,548,349)

243,286

Ordinary Shares

Other changes Balance at the
during the
end of the
year
year

Directors
Mr Malcolm James *

Mr Bradley Boyle
Mr Michael Raven
Total
(e)

-

Option holdings
Balance at
beginning of
the year

Directors
Mr Malcolm James *
Mr John Loney **
Mr Allen Govey **
Mr Gregory Hall **
Mr Trevor Osborne **
Mr Richard Monti ***
Mr David Singleton ***
Company Secretaries
Mr Michael Raven
Mr Bradley Boyle

Received
during the year

Other changes
during the year

Balance at the
end of the year

74,430
1,000,000
372,150
-

-

(74,430)
(1,000,000)
(372,150)
-

-

111,645
1,558,225

-

(1,446,580)

111,645
111,645

* * - During the year, Mr James was appointed as a director of the Company.
** - During the year, Mr Loney, Mr Govey, Mr Hall and Mr Osborne resigned as directors of the Company.
*** - Mr Monti was appointed as director of the Company on 16 August 2011. Messrs Monti and Singleton are
both directors of Poseidon Nickel Ltd, a company that holds 9,115,384 shares in Triton Gold Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 23. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (continued)
(f)

Other transactions with key management personnel
Other than noted above, there were no other transactions with key management personnel.
NOTE: 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, available-for-sale financial
assets, and accounts receivable and payable and loans to and from subsidiaries. The main
purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group does not speculate in the trading of derivative instruments.
The total for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as
detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
2011

2010

Floating
Interest
Rate

Noninterest
bearing

2011
Total

Fixed
Interest
rate

Floating
Interest
Rate

Noninterest
bearing

2010
Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2,092,266

Financial Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

585,035

-

585,035

25,000

Trade and other
receivables

-

654,243

654,243

-

Other financial assets

-

97,879

97,879

-

585,035

752,122

1,337,157

25,000

-

51,692

51,692

-

-

51,692

51,692

-

585,035

700,430

1,285,465

25,000

Total Financial
Assets

11,045

2,128,311

-

299,016

299,016

-

290,491

290,491

600,552

2,717,818

-

223,868

223,868

-

223,868

223,868

376,684

2,493,950

2,092,266

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
- Trade and other
payables
Total Financial
Liabilities

Net Financial Assets

2,092,266

Net Fair Values
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair value estimation
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as presented in the above table are
comparable to their carrying values as presented in the statement of financial position. Fair values
are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables are shortterm in nature and their carrying values equate to their fair values.
Financial Risk Management Policies
Risk management has focused on limiting liabilities to a level which could be extinguished by sale
of assets if necessary.
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including interest rate
risk, equity price risk, and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group is
engaged in mineral exploration and evaluation, and does not currently sell products and derives
only limited revenue from interest earned.
Risk management is carried out by the Board as a whole and no formal risk management policy
has been adopted but is in the process of development.
(a)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the
end of the reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility on
floating rate instruments.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased or
decreased the Group’s equity and profit or loss by $5,850 (2010: $20,922).
(ii)

Equity Price risk

The Group is currently exposed to equity securities by way of shares held in listed companies.
The price risk for listed securities is immaterial in terms of the possible impact on profit or loss or
total equity as a result of a 10% increase/decrease in the price of traded securities.
(iii)

Commodity Price risk

The Group is not currently exposed to commodity price risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iv)

Foreign currency risk

Exposure to foreign currency risk may result in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument to fluctuate due to the movement in the foreign exchange rates of currencies in which
the Group holds financial instruments which are other than Australian dollar.
The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal, at the 31 December there was a foreign
currency gain on the loan receivable held with Gold Mines Peru of $25,244. However, the Board
continues to review this exposure regularly.
(b)

Credit risk

Credit exposure represents the extent of credit related losses that the Group may be subject to on
amounts to be received from financial assets. Credit risk arises principally from trade and other
receivables. The objective of the Group is to minimise the risk of loss from credit risk. Although
revenue from operations is minimal, the Group trades only with creditworthy third parties. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is insignificant. The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure is limited to the
carrying value of its financial assets as indicated on the statement of financial position.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Carrying amount
2011
$
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

585,035
654,243
1,239,278

2010
$
2,128,311
299,016
2,427,327

All exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was
limited to Australia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment losses
The ageing of loans and receivables at the reporting date was:
Gross
Impairment
2011
2011
$
$
Not past due
Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 120 days
More than one year

640,016
640,016

-

Gross
2010
$
280,176
18,840
299,016

Impairment
2010
$
-

There were no allowances made for impairment in respect of loans and receivables during the
year at Group level.
(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts
or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities.
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
ensuring sufficient cash and marketable securities are available to meet the current and future
commitments of the Group. Due to the nature of the Group’s activities, being mineral exploration,
the Group does not have ready access to credit facilities, with the primary source of funding being
equity raisings. The Board of Directors constantly monitor the state of equity markets in
conjunction with the Group’s current and future funding requirements, with a view to initiating
appropriate capital raisings as required. Any surplus funds are invested with major financial
institutions.
The financial liabilities of the Group are confined to trade and other payables as disclosed in the
statement of financial position. All trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and due
within 30 days of the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:
 Level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
 Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

31 December 2011
Investment in listed securities

97,879
97,879

-

-

97,879
97,879

290,491
290,491

-

-

290,491
290,491

31 December 2010
Investment in listed securities

(e) Capital risk management
Refer to Note 13 of this financial report for details regarding the Group’s capital risk
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 25. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES
2011
$

(a) Financial Position of Triton Gold Limited

2010
$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total Current Assets

515,547
640,016

2,070,849
37,594

1,155,563

2,108,443

10,505
10,505

5,034,929
365,811
5,400,740

1,166,068

7,509,183

22,148
22,148
22,148

109,033
109,033
109,033

1,143,920

7,400,150

16,983,173
69,732
(15,908,985)
1,143,920

15,279,304
12,444
(7,891,598)
7,400,150

Non-Current Assets
Loans to subsidiaries
Financial assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

(b)
(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 25. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) Loans to Subsidiaries and Financial Assets
Loans are made by the parent entity to its wholly owned subsidiaries to fund exploration activities.
Loans outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are non-interest bearing, unsecured,
and are repayable upon notice having regard to the financial stability of the Company.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost.

Loans to subsidiaries
Provision for loss on intercompany loans
Net loans to subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries
Provision for loss on investments

2011
$
13,006,160
(12,995,655)

2010
$
11,234,699
(6,199,770)

10,505

5,034,929

1,449,469
(1,449,469)

1,449,469
(1,083,658)

-

365,811

Financial assets

The provisions have been based on the subsidiaries’ net asset positions and reflect the
recoverability of the investments and/or loans.

2011

2010

(c) Financial Performance of Triton Gold Limited
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

(8,017,387)
-

(2,729,917)
-

Total Comprehensive Income

(8,017,387)

(2,729,917)

(d) Guarantees entered into by Triton Gold Limited for the debts of its subsidiaries
There were no guarantees entered into by Triton Gold Limited for the debts of its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2011 (2010: nil).
(e) Contingent liabilities of Triton Gold Limited
Triton Gold Limited had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).
(f) Commitments of Triton Gold Limited
Triton Gold Limited had no exploration expenditure commitments as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
nil). However the operating lease commitments of the Group detailed in Note 18 are in the name
of Triton Gold Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 (continued)
NOTE: 26. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Group, MGI Perth Audit Services Pty Ltd, and its
related practices for audit and non-audit services provided during the year are set out below.
2011
$
Audit Services
Audit and review of financial reports
(MGI Perth Audit Services)
Other Services
Accounting and taxation advice
(MGI Perth)

2010
$

29,950

35,250

5,000

7,500

NOTE: 27. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 20 February 2012, the Company recovered the project acquisition secured loan of USD
$650,000 from a third party.
Mr Michael Raven, the Group’s Corporate Secretary in Canada, resigned from his position on 22
March 2012.
On 23 March 2012, the Group filed applications with the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission to voluntarily deregister a number of Australian subsidiaries. These are listed in Note
15 to the Annual Report.
During March 2012 the Group also relinquished all tenements relating to the Tushtena Project in
Alaska.
Since the end of the financial year, the Directors are not aware of any other matter of circumstance
not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements that has significantly or may
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated Group, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
______________________________________________________________________

The Directors of the Company declare that:
1.

the consolidated financial statements and notes, and the Remuneration report contained in
the Directors’ Report, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, and:
(i)

give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2011
and of its performance for the year ended on that date;

(ii)

comply with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001,
professional reporting requirements and other mandatory requirements; and

(iii)

the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board;

2.

The Directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the
Corporations Act 2001 from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011.

3.

In the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

_________________________________
Malcolm James
Chairman
Perth, 27 April 2012
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

______________________________________________________________________
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

______________________________________________________________________
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

______________________________________________________________________
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STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS
Details of shareholders and shareholdings
Holding of securities
121
Listed Securities
15 April 2012
Fully paid ordinary
shares

No. of holders

No. of shares

% Held by top 20

778

107,370,759

48.28

Distribution of holding – 5 April 2012

Size of Holding
1 - 1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 - 9,999,999,999
Total

Number
23
89
121
398
147
778

Of these, 246 shareholders held less than a marketable parcel of $500 worth of shares (1,577,006
shares). In accordance with ASX Business Rules, the last sale price of the Company’s shares on the
ASX on 13 April 2012 was used to determine the number of shares in a marketable parcel.
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STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS - TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS
Details of top 20 Shareholders – 29 March 20111
Name

Units

% of Units

POSEIDON NICKEL LTD

9,115,384

8.49

SUBIACO CAPITAL PTY LTD

8,313,123

7.74

NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED

6,368,711

5.93

MR IAN BARRIE MURIE <ALEVAN A/C>

4,131,667

3.85

BANNABY INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <BANNABY
SUPER FUND A/C>

2,930,000

2.73

ALL STATES FINANCE PTY LIMITED
DONROSE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <DONROSE
SUPER FUND A/C>
EMERSON CAPITAL CORPORATION <25350
A/C>

2,315,384

2.16

1,958,323

1.82

1,823,535

1.70

EXCEL CAPITAL CORPORATION <25349 A/C>

1,823,535

1.70

FAR EAST CAPITAL LIMITED

1,639,195

1.53

CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LTD

1,300,770

1.21

GREGORACH PTY LTD

1,287,401

1.20

OMAROO PTY LTD <GREG HALL A/C>
MERRIWEE PTY LTD <MERRIWEE SUPER FUND
A/C>
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA)
LIMITED
MERRILL LYNCH (AUSTRALIA) NOMINEES PTY
LIMITED
GUINA NOMINEES PTY LTD <THE BYASS SUPER
FUND A/C>
MR PAUL ROZIER OOST + MRS JANINE LEE
OOST <OOST SUPER FUND A/C>
MS NERIDAH CHAPMAN
MR KEVIN THOMAS MAHON <MAHON FAMILY
A/C>

1,265,310

1.18

1,200,908

1.12

1,125,000

1.05

1,116,037

1.04

1,069,930

1.00

1,053,074

0.98

1,000,000

0.93

1,000,000

0.93

51,837,287

48.28

Total
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of Triton Gold Limited will be held on Thursday, 31 May 2011, at
1.00pm at the Celtic Club Perth, 48 Ord Street, West Perth, Western Australia. Full details are
contained in the Notice of Meeting sent to all shareholders.
Voting Rights
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting, however, when this is not
possible, they are encouraged to use the Proxy Form by which they can express their views.
To vote by proxy, please complete and sign the proxy form enclosed in the AGM notice and send
the proxy form:
a) by post to Triton Gold Limited, P.O. Box 1518, West Perth, WA 6872; or
b) by facsimile to the Company on facsimile number +61 (0)8 9226 1799,
so that it is received not later than 1:00pm (WST) on 29 May 2011. Proxy forms received later
than this time will be invalid.
Every shareholder, proxy or shareholder’s representative has one vote on a show of hands,
except where a shareholder appoints two proxies, in which case neither proxy is entitled to vote
on a show of hands. In the case of a poll, each share held by every shareholder, proxy or
representative is entitled to:
a) one vote for each fully paid share; and
b) voting rights in proportion to the paid up amount of the issue price for partly paid shares.
Securities Exchange Listing
Triton’s shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange under the code ‘TON’.
Share Register and Other Enquiries
If you have any questions in relation to your shareholding or share transfers please contact our
share registry:
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 2
45 St George’s Terrace
PERTH WA 6000
Australia
Telephone: 1300 134 708
International: +61 (0)8 9323 2000
Facsimile: +61 (0)8 9323 2033
Email: web.queries@computershare.com.au
Website: www.computershare.com.au

70
Triton Gold Limited I Level 4, 66 Kings Park Road, West Perth WA 6005 I T +61 89215 4222 I F +61 89226 1799

For personal use only

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION (Cont)
Please include your shareholder reference number (SRN) or holder identification number (HIN) in
all correspondence to the share registry. For enquiries relating to the operations of the Company,
please contact Triton Gold Ltd Company Secretary on:
Telephone: +61 8 9215 4222
Facsimile: +61 8 9226 1799
Email: bboyle@tritongold.com.au
Website: www.tritongold.com.au
Level 4
66 Kings Park Road
WEST PERTH WA 6005
Tax File Numbers, Australian Business Numbers or Exemptions
Australian taxpayers who do not provide details of their tax file number will have dividends
subjected to the top marginal personal tax rate plus Medicare levy. It may be in the interests of
shareholders to ensure that tax file numbers have been supplied to the share registry.
Shareholders may request a form from the share registry.
Change of Address
It is important for shareholders to notify the share registry of any change of address. As a security
measure, the old address should also be quoted as well as your shareholder reference number
(SRN).
Key Dates
29 May 2012
Proxy due for AGM
31 May 2012
Annual General Meeting
31 December 2011
End of financial year
Triton Gold Limited:
A.B.N. 99 126 042 215
Company Secretary:
Brad Boyle
Registered Office:
Level 4
66 Kings Park Road
WEST PERTH WA 6005
Australia
Telephone: +61 8 9215 4222
Facsimile: +61 8 9226 1799
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TENEMENT SCHEDULE

Project

Tenement

Triton Gold %

Fraser Range North

E28/1663

100

Fraser Range North

E28/1664

100

Salmon Gums

E63/1092

100

E63/1093

100

E63/1094

100

E63/1095

100

E63/1096

100

Competent Persons Statement: The information in this report that relates to Exploration Results based
on information compiled by Mr Richard Monti, who is a Member of the Australian Institute of Mining
and Metallurgy. Mr Monti is a Non-Executive Director of the company, and has sufficient experience
which is relevant to the style of mineralisation under consideration and to the activity which he is
undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the ‘Australasian Code
for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’. Mr Monti consents to the
inclusion in the report of the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it
appears.
Forward-Looking Statements: This document may include forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements include, but are not necessarily limited to, statements concerning Triton Gold Limited’s
planned exploration program and other statements that are not historic facts. When used in this
document, the words such as “could”, “plan”, “estimate” “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “potential”,
“should” and similar expressions are forward-looking statements. Although Triton Gold Limited believes
that its expectations reflected in these are reasonable, such statements involve risks and uncertainties,
and no assurance can be given that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking
statements.
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

______________________________________________________________________
DIRECTORS
Mr Malcolm James

Chairman (Non-executive)

Mr Richard Monti

Director (Non-executive)

Mr Brad Boyle

Managing Director (Executive)

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

HOME BRANCH:

Mr Brad Boyle

Australian Securities Exchange Limited
Exchange Plaza
2 The Exchange
Perth WA 6000
ASX Code: TON

REGISTERED OFFICE

SHARE REGISTRY:

Level 4, 66 Kings Park Road
West Perth, WA 6005

Computershare Investor Services Limited
Level 2, 45 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Telephone:(+61 8 9323 2000)
Facsimile: (+61 8 9323 2033)
Website: www.computershare.com.au

Telephone:(+61 8 9215 4222)
Facsimile: (+61 8 9226 1799)
Website: www.tritongold.com.au
AUDITORS
MGI Perth Audit Services Pty Ltd
Level 7, The Quadrant
1 William Street
Perth WA 6000
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